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MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY

The Members of the Governing Body are the House's charity trustees under charity law. The members of the Governing

Body who served in office during the year or subsequently are detailed below.

(z) (&) (4) (s) (6) (7) (8)

The Very Reverend Professor M.W.
Per
Canons:
The Venerable M.A. Gorick
The Reverend Canon Professor N.J.
Bi ar

The Reverend Canon Professor S.R.I.
Foot
The Reverend Canon Professor G.D.
Ward
The Reverend Canon E.J. Newey

Canon Professor C. Harrison

Students:
Professor R.B. Rutherford

Professor J. Cartwri ht
Professor S.M. Darlin on

Professor D.J. Hine

Professor R.L. Judson

Professor I.M.C. Watson

Professor E.J.F. Sim son

Professor S.D. Howison

Professor M.J. Edwards

Professor M.D. McCulloch
Professor D. Obbink
Professor S.L. Rowland-Jones

Dr B.E. Jack
Professor D.P. McDonald
Professor S. Neubauer

Professor B. Parkinson

Professor E.M.C. Tandello-Coo er

Dr D.P. Moran
Professor G. Wilkinson

Professor R.L. Davies

Professor Sir J.I. Bell

Professor G.A. Johnson

Professor J.G.E. Cross

Dr A.J. Clark
Dr B.W. Youn

Professor J.J. Davis

Professor M.C.A Bose

Professor J. Yee

Professor A. Kuhn

Mr J.C.F.S. Lawrie

Professor D. Aarts

Professor S.J. Cr
Professor R. Wade-Martins

Professor J.K. Schear

Professor E.G.W. Keene

Professor S.C. Mortimer

Professor K. McGe

(retired gr December zor8)
(retired go Se tember zor8)
(retired 3o Se tember zor8)

~ ~
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Ms P.A. Linihres-Hartley

Mr K. Sternber

Ms L. Elder

Professor S. Dadson
Professor S. L. Newstead

Professor K.C. Kin

Dr A. Camilleri

Professor R. Barker
Professor J. Joosten
Professor S. Hiscock
Professor G. Hutchinson

Dr K. Lebow

Professor A. Kuo

Professor M. van der Schaar

Professor Sir T. Berners-Lee

Professor A. Vasudevan

Professor P-G Martinsson

Professor P. Sedlacek

Mr M. Coote
Dr H. Hoo er

Professor Y. Gal

Dr J Allison

Dr S Duncan
Professor S Grahl

Professor M Holwe

Professor C Kennefick

Professor Y Nakatsukasa

Dr L Brassart

Dr E Smith

(resi ned 3o Se tember zor8)

(resi ned Sr Au ust zor8)

(resigned So Se tember zor9)

(a ointed r October zoi8)

(a ointed r Se tember zor8)

(a ointed r December zoi8)
(a ointed r January zor9)
(a ointed r A ril zor9)
(a ointed 29 July 20I9)
(a ointed r November zot9)

During the year the policies of the Governing Body were developed and implemented through eight principal committees.
The current membership of these committees is shown above for each Student.

(&)

(z)

(3)

(4)

(s)

(&)

(7)

(8)

(9)

House Committee

Finance Committee

Academic Committee

Development Committee

Salaries Board

Grants Committee

Benefices Committee

General Purposes and Strategy Committee

Equality and Diversity Committee

External members sit on the Finance Committee, Development Committee and the Salaries Board. The external members

over the academic year were:

Finance Committee: Mr J. Curtis, Mr D. McDougall.

Development Committee: Mr K.P. Street, Miss P. E.C. Deane, Mr J.E. Philpott, Mrs G.P. Stein.

Salaries Board: Dr I. Asquith, Mr H. Crisp, Ms K Paterson.
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HOUSE SENIOR STAFF

The senior staff to whom day to day management is delegated are as follows.

A The Dean
B The Senior Censor
C The Junior Censor
D The Treasurer

E The Steward

The Very Reverend Martyn Percy

Dr Geraldine johnson

Pro essor Dirk c4rts
Mr james Lawrie

Ms Pauline Li nieres-Hartley

HOUSE ADVISERS

Investment managers

Oxford University Endowment Management Limited

King Charles House, Park End Street, Oxford, OXr rJD

Investment property managers and principal surveyor

Savills (LRPl Limited Chartered Surveyors

Wytham Court, rr Westway, Oxford, OXz oQL

Auditor

Critchleys Audit LLP

Beaver House, 23-38 Hythe Bridge Street, Oxford, OXr zEP

Bankers

Barclays Bank pic

Business Banking, 4' Floor, Apex Plaza, Forbury Road, Reading, Berkshire, RGrr rAX

Solicitors

Blake Morgan LLP

Harbour Court, Compass Road, North Harbour, Portsmouth, Hampshire, PO6 4ST

Mills R Reeve LLP

Francis House, rrz Hills Road, Cambridge, CBz rPH

Address

Christ Church, St Aldate's, Oxford, OXr rDP

Web site

www. chch. ox.ac.uk
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The Members of the Governing Body present their Annual Report for the year ended 3r July zor9 under the Charities Act
zou together with the audited financial statements for the year.

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

Christ Church is a joint foundation —of a college in the University of Oxford and of the Cathedral Church of the Diocese of
Oxford —supported by a single corporate endowment, which is known as Christ Church ("the House" ). The present

collegiate foundation was established by King Henry Virr in r546. Statutes were conferred by the Christ Church Oxford Act,

i867 and these, as modified subsequently by Oxford University Commissions and by Order of Her Majesty in Council,

govern its afFairs. The government of the foundation vests in the Governing Body formed of the Dean, certain of the Canons
and the elected Students.

The House registered with the Charities Commission on ry August zori (registered number II43423).

The names of all Members of the Governing Body at the date of this report and of those in office during the year, together

with details of the senior staff and advisers of the House, are given on pages z to 3.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Governing documents

The House is governed by its Statutes, dated r6 March zorn

Governing Body

The Governing Body is constituted and regulated in accordance with the House's Statutes, the terms of which are enforceable

ultimately by the Visitor, who is Her Majesty, The Queen. Membership of the Governing Body is associated (automatically in

most cases) with appointment or election to certain posts in the joint foundation, as outlined below, and lapses in the event of
resignation or retirement From those posts.

The Governing Body consists of the Dean, Canons (as defined in Statute Id(i)) and Students (as stated in Statute XIII) of
Christ Church. The Students may be (i) tutorial fellows, appointed to joint posts with the University; (ii) University

Professors or holders of equivalent posts or University Readers; (iii) senior administrative officers of the House, including the

Treasurer and the Steward; and (iv) other persons of distinction whose election to the Governing Body in the opinion of the

Governing Body will advance the interests of education and learning in the House or will broaden its expertise.

The Governing Body determines the strategic direction of the House and regulates its administration and the management of
its finances and assets. It meets regularly under the chairmanship of the Dean and is advised by a number of committees, the

most important of which are detailed below.

Recruitment and training of Members of the Governing Body

As membership of Governing Body is dependent on the hoIding of other posts, recruitment depends on the procedures

normal for those posts. The Dean, Sub-Dean and Regius Professors are appointed by the Crown. Other academic

appointments are by appointment committees; these are university committees in the case of Professors (other than the Regius

Professors) and joint university/college committees in other cases. The Archdeacon is appointed by the Bishop of Oxford in

consultation with the Chapter of the Cathedral. Senior administrative posts are filled on the advice of specially formed

committees reporting to Governing Body. Other persons of distinction may be invited to take up Studentships which give

them membership of Governing Body.

New members of Governing Body are inducted by current college ofFicers, typically the Censors and the Treasurer. Induction

topics include the role of the Governing Body in the Joint Foundation and responsibilities of its members. Members of the

Governing Body attend external trustee training and information courses to keep them informed on current issues in the

sector and on regulatory requirements.

Remuneration of Members of the Governing Body and Senior College Staff

Members of the Governing Body, who are primarily Fellows, are teaching and research employees of the House and receive

no remuneration or benefits from their trusteeship of the House. Those trustees that are also employees oF the House receive

remuneration for their work as employees of the House which is set based on the advice of the House's Salaries Board, three

members of which are not members of Governing Body and not in receipt of remuneration from the House. Where possible,

remuneration is set in line with that awarded to the University's academic stafF.

The remuneration of senior college staff is set by the House's Remuneration Committee.
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Organisational management

The Governing Body meets ordinarily nine times a year. The work oF developing policies and monitoring implementation is

carried out by nine principal Committees:

~ The House Committee considers questions involving the domestic finances, management and organisation of the House,
accommodation and the use of space, and other domestic matters.

~ The Finance Committee considers matters relating to the property and investments of the House, and questions
involving the overall financial policy of the House.

~ The Academic Committee considers matters relating to the teaching, research and educational activities of the House.

~ The Development Committee considers matters concerned with alumni relations and with fund-raising for the purposes
of the House, and advises the Development Director and the Development Adviser.

~ The Salaries Board considers questions relating to the salaries and expenses of those engaged in teaching, members of the
House and to other expenses connected with such teaching.

~ The Grants Committee considers questions of reasonable charitable donations under Stat. XKG.3.(v) and of grants For

members of the Governing Body, Lecturers, Junior Research Fellows and Senior Scholars.

The Benefices Committee exercises the Governing Body's right to present to vacant benefices in the gift of the House.

The General Purposes and Strategy Committee considers questions of policy and strategy concerning the House.

~ The Equality and Diversity Committee monitors, provides information and takes actions related to equality and diversity
within the House, across the collegiate University, and in regards to external agencies and individuals.

The day-to-day running of the House is delegated to the Dean and Censors, and other college officers notably the Treasurer
and the Steward. The Dean and Censors attend all meetings oF the principal committees except that the Junior Censor does

not attend the Salaries Board, the Senior Censor does not attend the Grants Committee and neither Censor attends the
Benefices Committee.

Under Clause 5(a) of the House's statutes, certain powers are reserved to the Dean and Chapter in respect of.

(i) the Cathedral Church and its fabric and appurtenances, including the Chapter House; and

(z) the Cathedral Chaplains, Organist, Lay Clerks, and Choristers, and other officers of the Cathedral Church; and

(g) the residentiary houses assigned for occupation by the Dean and the Canons together with Cloister House.

Members of Chapter form the Board of Governors of Christ Church Cathedral School ("CCCS"),which is chaired by the
Dean. CCCS occupies buildings provided by the House which from time to time provides financial support for the school
including choral scholarships.

Group structure and relationships

The House administers many special trusts, as detailed in Notes i9 to zo to the financial statements.

The House also has seven wholly-owned non-charitable subsidiaries: Christ Church Library Charity Limited, which held the
book stock, Christ Church Oxford Trading Limited, whose annual profits are donated to the House under the Gift Aid
Scheme, Christ Church Developments Limited, which undertakes major building projects, Christ Church (Evesham)
Limited, Christ Church (Daventry) Limited, Thomas Wolsey Property Limited and Wick Farming Limited, all of which hold
agricultural land with long term development potential. The trading activities of Christ Church Oxford Trading primarily
comprise revenue from conference activities and letting of the Facilities when not in use by the House. The subsidiaries' aims,

objectives and achievements are covered in the relevant sections of this report.

The House is part oF the collegiate University of Oxford. Material interdependencies between the University and the House
arise as a consequence of this relationship.
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OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Charitable Objects and Aims

The Objects of the Charity are as follows:

A) The advancement of religion, education and learning, in particular but not exclusively by:

(i) the provision, support, conduct and maintenance of Christ Church Cathedral as the Cathedral of the Diocese of
Oxford, together with its Choir;

(ii) the provision, support, conduct and maintenance of Christ Church as a college within the University of Oxford;
and

(iii) the promotion of research in any branch of learning.

B) In so far as it is not incompatible with the objects set out in (A) above, the advancement of the arts, culture, heritage and
science, in particular but not exclusively by:

(i) the preservation and conservation of collections of articles of historical, aesthetic or scientific interest;

(ii) the preservation and conservation of the Cathedral and its appurtenances including the Chapter House; and

(iii) the preservation and conservation of the other buildings of the House and its curtilage including the Meadow.

The Governing Body has considered the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and in keeping with its objects,
the House's aims for the public benefit are:

~ the advancement of religion by providing and maintaining the Cathedral of the Diocese of Oxford which is home to an
active congregation and a world famous Cathedral Choir;

~ the advancement of education and learning by providing higher education for some 4oo undergraduate and zoo
postgraduate students within Oxford University, the students being selected by academic merit;

~ the facilitation of research in a range of topics by providing access to its libraries, Picture Gallery and other collections to
its undergraduates, graduates, fellows and members of the Governing Body undertaking research and, on a discretionary

basis, to non-members of Christ Church undertaking appropriate research;

~ the further advancement of education and learning through the activities of the Cathedral School;

~ the advancement of the arts, culture, heritage and science by the preservation and conservation of collections of articles of
historical, aesthetic or scientific interest; the making available of certain articles to researchers and/or the public;

~ the advancement of the arts, culture and heritage by the preservation and conservation of the Cathedral and its

appurtenances including the Chapter House, and by the preservation and conservation of the other buildings of the
House and its curtilage including the Meadow, for the benefit of current and Future members of the House and of the
general public; and the advancement of the arts, culture and heritage by the maintenance oF its choral foundation, one of
the oldest in England;

~ the House is particularly committed to the provision of student support, in the form of both bursaries and support for
current students in financial difficulty, with a view to ensuring that those of sufficient academic ability should be able to
attend Christ Church irrespective of family wealth. The aims set for the House's subsidiaries are to help finance the
achievement of the House's aims as above.

The aims set for the House's subsidiaries are to help finance the achievement of such aims.
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Activities and objectives of the House

The House's activities are focused on furthering its stated objects and aims For the public benefit.

Our stated object of promoting research has been Furthered by the appointment of Four new Junior Research Fellows, an

Official Student (Tutorial Fellow) in Law, an Official Student in Mathematics, an OFficial Student in Engineering, a Fixed
Term Student in English and an Ordinary Student in Management.

Residential rooms and offices in Peckwater Quad continue to be refurbished, which is greatly enhancing Christ Church's
student accommodation and its provision for academic research and teaching spaces. We also completed a major project
ref'urbishing and extending the so-called Thatched Barn complex just to the south of the main site. This project has provided
us with a new Research Centre that has already hosted a number of academic events, thereby f'urther promoting our research
object. It is also enhancing outreach to the wider public and advancing the general object of education and learning by
providing a new gateway for visitors, who can now purchase their tickets at the front of the building and then take a tour of
the College and Cathedral with a new multimedia audio guide available in a number of languages, which was created with
input from our academic staff into the cultural and historical content provided.

The House's continued support of the IntoUniversity initiative in Oxford has contributed to our general object of advancing
education and learning. Along with other access and outreach activities, it is part of an aim to broaden the available pool of
candidates for our undergraduate places, and to enhance the quality of their education, supporting Christ Church's status as a
college of the University of Oxford. Christ Church is now the major source of funding for the Oxford part of Target
Oxbridge, which offers academic support and encouragement to potential applicants of black heritage. The Access and
Outreach team has developed other projects in Christ Church's designated link regions and beyond. In particular, we have

expanded Horizons, our sustained contact programme in our London link region, Barnet, and are establishing another
sustained contact programme in collaboration with St Anne's College in the North-East of England, where we are part of a
new regional College Consortium (with St Anne's and Trinity). Christ Church is also participating in the University's new
Bridging Programme, Opportunity Oxford.

The House's aim oF providing support For students of modest means is furthered by our contribution to the Oxford
Opportunity Bursary and the University's Crankstart (ex Moritz Heyman) Scholarship schemes administered by the central
University, which makes allocations principally on the basis of household income. Christ Church also provides financial
assistance such as subsidies of accommodation and dining costs, and internship bursaries, for current junior members
depending on household income, with other grants allocated after evaluating students' income and expenditure on a case-by-
case basis.

Governing Body held an offsite meeting at the beginning of the zoi9-zo academic year at which it explored potential
capital plans including in relation to Library provision for students, graduate student housing and the Picture Gallery, and
explored expanding financial support for graduate students and endowing existing and new Official Studentships in
preparation for a fundraising initiative to celebrate Christ Church's 5ooth anniversary in zoz5. These discussions confirm the
House's ambitious plans for Further enhancing education and learning in the decades to come.

ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE

44o undergraduate students were resident during the academic year. Of these, ii9 were finalists who completed their degree
courses; 93% gained Firsts or z, .is.

zz5 graduate students were following courses of study during the academic year. Of these, 56 completed Masters/BCL degrees
and zi completed doctorates.

The Cathedral offered daily public worship and acted as a chapel For all members of Christ Church. It also offered a venue For

special services for the Diocese of Oxford and other outside organisations. The Cathedral also provided a range of educational
activities for schools and other groups, and Functioned as a venue for public concerts and other events.

Pupil numbers at the Cathedral School increased throughout the year from i49 in Michaelmas Term to i5y at the end of
Trinity Term. The number of Cathedral Choristers increased from i8 at the start of the year to zi. A total of io scholarships
were gained by this year's leavers (zoic-i8: 9).

Voluntary income as fundraising amounted to 53,058k (zoi7-i8: f3,r96k) which excludes pledges and the notification of i9
new legacy bequests (iy for zoic-r8). Notwithstanding the challenging environment of the past year within Fundraising the
results are consistent with the previous year's totals. Activities have included the successful launch of a regular giving society
('TOM') and the second year of a Leaver's Gift, with 87% participation amongst those graduating From the House. Alumni
donor participation has increased for the second consecutive year, rising by 9%, an indication of continued success with the
focus on donor engagement, and support at Board of Benefactor level remains consistent, with ii new Board members (ii for
zoic-i8).
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Development costs (including salaries of staFF in the development office, and organisation of alumni and donor events)
amounted to 59o6k, representing a iz% increase on the previous year (zoi7-i8: 58o8k). In spite of cost savings within
Development operational costs, the overspend is attributable to the allocation of additional provision required For the USS
and OSPS pension schemes attributable to the Development team.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The House's total income of 534,z9zk (zor7-i8: f35,o3zk) was f74ok lower than zor7-i8, a r.9% reduction.

The charitable activities of the House include teaching and research, provision of board and lodgings for members oF the

House, Cathedral and Cathedral School and access for visitors. The income generated by these charitable activities amounted
to fr3, r85k, a o.z% increase compared to the previous year (zoi7-i8: fr3, r53k). The cost of undertaking these charitable
activities in the year was 53r,oo5k, a zr% increase compared to the previous year (zoi7-i8: fz5, 56rk). There was an overall

operating deficit of fi7, 8zok on these charitable activities which is Funded by expendable donations, trading income and
transfers from the House's endowment.

Income

Income from charitable activities was fr3, r85k comprising fee income of fz, 966k, which was r% lower than the previous year,
college residential income of @,4I9k which was 5% lower, combined income From the Cathedral and Cathedral School of
fz, 6zzk was z% higher and visitor income of 53,o5zk was 8% higher than the previous year (zoi7-r8: fz, 8zik).

Fundraising income (which includes both income and capital donations) was f3,o58k, 3.5% lower than zoi7-i8. Capital
donations of fz,453k were 4o% higher (2OI7-I8; XI,75rk) while income donations of 56o5k were 57% lower than zoi7-i8
(fi,4i8k which included donations of f5z9k received in the year towards the ref'urbishment oF Peckwater Quad).

Non charitable trading income of 5936k was unchanged (zoi7-i8: 5935k), whilst charitable conference income of fi,264k was

23% lower than zoi7-i8, due mainly to a shorter conference season.

Income from investment assets of fi6,987k was 4% lower than the previous year (zoi7-r8; fi7, 64zk) due largely to a reduction
in equity dividends and other investment income (-Xi,?86k) and an increase in commercial property income (+/553k).

Expenditure

The House sets its budget for expenditure on the basis of a rolling 5-year plan which enables Forward planning of significant
building and maintenance projects and other strategic projects set by Governing Body.

The House's total expenditure of f37,983k was 56,rz6k higher than zoi7-i8 (53r,857k).

Expenditure on charitable activities of f3i,oo5k was 55,444k higher than the previous year. Maintenance and refurbishment
expenditure on college buildings of f5,692k (zoi7-i8: 55, i65k), was f53zk higher compared to the previous year. Included in

the current year is f3,373k on phase z of the Peckwater Quad staircase refurbishment. The other main project in zoi8-i9 was

the continuation of works to the Thatched Barn; a total of X3,5o8k incurred in the year has been capitalised. Phase 3b of the
Peckwater Quad staircase refurbishment and completion of the works to the Thatched Barn are planned for zoi9-zo. Rent,
rates and insurance of 57i9k is Q4rk higher than zoi7-i8 with the first full year's rental of rt7 St Aldate's, Oxford, a new 79
bed residential staircase occupied by the House on a 4o year long leasehold basis. Following a review of its Outreach and
Access activities in zoi7-i8, a number of new initiatives were implemented in this area. zoi8-r9 is the second year of a 5-year

project and saw expenditure increase by 574k to &59k.

Included in total charitable expenditure is the movement on the defined benefit pension schemes' deficit liability, as required
under FRS ioz. The net movement in the year is an increase of fr,959k, being an increase for OSPS of 5393k and an increase

For USS of fr, 566k (zoi7-i8: OSPS reduction of 596k, USS increase of f8k = f88k). The total pension scheme deficit liability
as at 3r July zoi9 recognised in these financial statements as required by FRS roz, has thus increased From fz, 3ook to @,z59k
(USS: fz,4r8k, OSPS: Sr, 84rk), producing a net reduction in funds available to the House of @,259k.

The cost of generating funds in zoi8-i9 was f6,978k (zor7-18: 56,z96k), f68zk or ii% higher than the previous year. Interest

payable of fr, oz7k (zoi7-r8; Q,oz7k) was unchanged compared to zoi7-r8 and represents the interest payable on @om loan
notes, bearing a coupon of z.567%, which were drawn down in September zor6. Investment management costs of @,393k
were 5778k higher than the previous year due mainly to increased maintenance and refurbishment expenditure incurred on
the House's investment properties. Fundraising costs of f9o6k were rz% higher than zoi7-r8 (/8o8k), f97k due to the
allocated share of the pension deficit liability movement, whereas direct costs of f7ztk were in line with zoi7-r8.

The adoption of FRS ioz also requires the recognition of the fair value of complex financial instruments. In zoo8, the House
entered into an interest rate swap with Barclays Bank pic, under which it receives interest at 3-month LIBOR and pays a fixed
rate of interest of 4.783%. The notional amount of the swap is from and expires on i February zo38. The fair value cost of
unwinding this interest rate swap as at 3i July z,oi9 has been provided at 56,66zk (zoi7-r8: 55,4i8k), an increase in the year of
fr, z44k.
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Result for the year

The consolidated net funds of the House rose by fz3,755k in the year, the net increase is attributable to:

z,oIS-I9 z,OI7-IS

~ Unrestricted funds (f 4,442k) f i,576k
~ Restricted funds f 893k 6oik
~ Endowment funds (*) f z7,3o4k f 49,i3ok

(*) Including total investment gains in the year of f2,8,095k (2,oij-i8: f47,607k).

Reserves policy

The House's reserves policy is to maintain sufficient free reserves to enable it to meet its short-term financial obligations in the
event oF an unexpected revenue shortfall to allow the House to be managed efficiently and to provide a buffer to ensure

uninterrupted services.

Total f'unds of the House and its subsidiaries at the year-end amounted to f587.9m (zoi7-i8: f564.zm). This includes

endowment capital of f577.6m and unspent restricted income funds totalling fi nim.

The House's free reserves at the year-end amounted to a deficit of f3,o69k (zoi7-i8: fr, 883k surplus), representing retained

unrestricted income reserves excluding an amount of f8,7o5k for the book value of fixed assets less associated funding
arrangements and designated reserves at the year end amounting to f6ook (zoi7-i8: f486k). Governing Body has set a target
to increase free reserves by f5ook pa in its rolling 5-year plan. Whilst adopting a policy target for free reserves, the Governing
Body also recognises that expenditure on certain repair and renovation projects could be postponed in the event of a cash-flow

problem.

Designated reserves of f6ook at the year end included f43k for unexpended Annual Fund projects which are projected to be

spent over the next three years.

Risk management

The House has processes For identifying, evaluating and managing the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the House
and its subsidiaries in undertaking their activities. When it is not able to address risk issues using internal resources, the House
takes advice from external experts. A report on major risks is prepared annually by the Treasury, which is considered by the
Finance Committee and Governing Body each year. Health and Safety risks are monitored by a committee of heads of
department, chaired by the Steward and subject to annual external audit.

Training courses and other Forms of career development are available to members of staff to enhance their skills in risk-related

areas.

The Governing Body, which has ultimate responsibility for managing any risks faced by the House, has given consideration to
the major risks to which the House and its subsidiaries are exposed and has concluded that adequate systems are in place to
manage these risks. It is recognised that systems can provide only reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that major risks have

been managed.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the House and its subsidiaries that have been identified are categorised as

follows:

Measures

Recruitment of staff (academic and non-

academic)

z. Reputational risk From lapses in academic
standards

Terms and conditions of service reviewed regularly

Monitor admissions procedures, student satisfaction
and exam results

IT network and data security IT managed jointly with Pembroke College.
Investment in eo le and hardware/software

4. Disaster Recovery planning procedures reviewed regularly,
liaison with emer en services

Decline in purchasing power of the
endowment

Diversified portfolio and close oversight from the
Investment Grou
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Investment policy, objectives and performance

The House's investment objectives are to balance current and future beneficiary needs by:

~ maintaining (at least) the value of the investments in real terms;

~ producing consistent and sustainable income to support expenditure; and

~ delivering these objectives within acceptable levels of risk.

To meet these objectives the House's investments as a whole are managed on a total return basis, maintaining diversification
across a range of asset classes in order to produce an appropriate balance between risk and return. In line with this approach,
the House's statutes allow the House to invest permanent endowment to maximise the related total return and to make an

appropriate proportion of the unapplied total return available for expenditure each year.

Investment policy and strategy are set by the Governing Body as advised by the Investment Group from time to time and
performance is regularly monitored by the Investment Group. At the year end, the House's long term investments, combining
securities and property investments, totalled f577.6m (2,oi7-i8: f55o.3m), net of Qom loan notes. Investment returns were

reasonable, with a total return on the House's investments after fees and interest on the loan notes of +8.o% (2OI7-I8:
+I2.4%) .

The carrying value of the preserved permanent capital and the amount of any unapplied total return available for expenditure
was taken as the open market values of these funds as at i August moor together with the original gift value of all subsequent
endowment received.

On the total return basis of investing, it is the Governing Body's policy to extract as income 3.2,5% (plus investment

management costs) of the value of the relevant investments. However, to smooth and moderate the amounts withdrawn, this

is calculated on the average of the year-end values in each of the preceding five years. Due to increasing investment values

over the previous five years, the effective amounts withdrawn are currently less than the nominal 3.z5% stated in this policy.

The equivalent of such 3.z5% of the opening value of the securities and property investments, plus costs, was taken as income
in the year. The Governing Body keeps the level of income withdrawn under review to balance the needs and interests of
current and future beneficiaries oF the House's activities.

Fundraising Activities

Christ Church's Alumni Relations and Development team exists to develop lifelong relationships with and amongst alumni,

donors and supporters, and to raise funds for Christ Church's charitable activities. The Development Office consists of a
Director and seven members of staff. Communications include news, research developments, events, exhibitions, resources,
reunions, volunteering opportunities, fundraising appeals and progress updates that are important to alumni.

The Development Office works with a network of volunteers —the Development Board —who provide advice on its

fundraising and alumni relations activities. The Development Office also works with other volunteers through the Christ
Church Association and the American Friends of Christ Church. All communications from alumni volunteers to other alumni

are directed through the office, with the exception of non-fundraising communications through the Alumni Social Media
groups on Facebook, LinkedIn, and the Oxford Alumni Network.

Christ Church is committed to best practice when engaging with all alumni, current members, parents and friends of the

House and is registered with the Fundraising Regulator. It voluntarily subscribes to its Code of Fundraising Practice as

adapted, by agreement with the Regulator, to meet the particular circumstances of colleges in the University of Oxford. The
activities of Christ Church Development Office volunteers adhere to the Code of Fundraising Practice as adapted.

Christ Church is not aware oF any failure on its part to comply with the Code, and has not received any complaints in zoi8-z9
about its fundraising activity, nor the activity of its volunteers. Christ Church does not solicit funds from members of the

public: its fundraising activities are Focused principally on its alumni and on third parties introduced to the House by alumni

or the University of Oxford. The Development Office will always respect the wishes of any alumni who wish to expand or
limit communications by type or means.

As a registered charity, Christ Church is regulated by the Charity Commission for England and Wales; in fundraising, the

Development Office adheres to all applicable laws in the relevant jurisdictions. Personal information is handled with care and
confidentiality, and is processed in accordance with the Data Protection Act, the General Data Protection Regulation, and all

other applicable laws to support the House mission, related events, fundraising, sharing news, volunteering, and networking
activities.
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FUTURE PLANS

The House seeks to continue to Fulfil its core purposes. To this end, its policies in all areas are reviewed regularly by the
committees set out on page 6 and by the Governing Body. In 2020, the House will be marking the 4oth anniversary of the
arrival of women to study at Christ Church. To celebrate this major event in the history of the House's provision of education
and learning, we plan to hold a number of events, as well as establish new career and academic networks for students, early
career researchers, Official Students, and alumnae. We also continue to make plans for the House's 5ooth anniversary in zozg,
which will include increasing support for graduate and undergraduate education and For academic research through endowing
academic posts and the opportunities made possible by our new Research Centre in the Thatched Barn. Christ Church is also

expecting to undertake a governance review in the coming year with the support of the Charity Commission, which will allow
it to meet its various charitable objects as a College and Cathedral even more effectively and efficiently in the future.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

The Governing Body is responsible for preparing the Report of the Governing Body and the financial statements in

accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Charity law requires the Governing Body to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Governing Body has prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including Financial Reporting Standard ioz: The
Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS ioz).

Under charity law the Governing Body must not approve the financial statements unless it is satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the House and of its net income or expenditure for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the Governing Body is required to:

~ select the most suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

~ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

~ state whether applicable accounting standards, including FRS ioz, have been Followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

~ state whether a Statement oF Recommended Practice (SORP) applies and has been followed, subject to any material

departures which are explained in the financial statements.

~ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the House will

continue to operate.

The Governing Body is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the House's

transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the House and enable it to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Charities Act zoii. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the House and
ensuring their proper application under charity law and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

Approved by the Governing Body on 4 December zoi9 and signed on its behalf by:

Professor Ian Watson

Censor Theologiae
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Independent auditor's report to the Members of the Governing Body of Christ Church

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Christ Church (the "Charity" ) for the year ended 3i July zoi9 which comprise the

Statement ofAccounting Policies, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities, the Consolidated and House Balance

Sheets, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements. The financial reporting Framework that

has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial

Reporting Standard zoz, : The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

~ give a true and fair view oF the state of the group and charity's affairs as at 3i July zoi9 and of the group's income and

expenditure for the year then ended;

~ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

~ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act zori.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial

statements section of our report. We are independent of the Charity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the Following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you
where:

~ the Members of the Governing Body's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the

financial statements is not appropriate; or

~ the Members of the Governing Body have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material

uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Charity's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis

of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Other information

The Members of the Governing Body are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other informauon and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our

report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material

misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material

misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor's report to the Members of the Governing Body of Christ Church

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Charities Act zoii requires us to report

to you if, in our opinion:

~ sufFicient accounting records have not been kept;

~ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

~ we have not obtained all the information and explanations necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Responsibilities of the Members of the Governing Body

As explained more fully in the Statement of Accounting and Reporting Responsibilities [set out on page rz], the Members of
the Governing Body are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true

and fair view, and for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Members of the Governing Body are responsible for assessing the Charity's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Members of the Governing Body either intend to liquidate the Charity or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the fmancial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance

is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UKl will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: www. frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our Report

This report is made solely to the House's Governing Body, as a body, in accordance with section i44 of the Charities Act zon
and the regulations made under section i54 of that Act. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the

Members of the Governing Body those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other

purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the House's

Governing Body as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Critchleys Audit LLP

Statutory Auditor

Oxford

Date:

Critchleys Audit LI.P is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of sections iziz of the Companies Act zoo6.
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Scope of the financial statements

The financial statements present the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA), the Consolidated and

House Balance Sheets and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the House and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

Christ Church Library Charity Limited, Christ Church Oxford Trading Limited, Christ Church (Evesham) Limited,
Christ Church (Daventry) Limited, Thomas Wolsey Property Limited, Wick Farming Limited and Christ Church
Developments Limited. The subsidiaries have been consolidated from the date oF their formation being the date from
which the House has exercised control through voting rights in the subsidiaries. No separate SOFA has been presented
for the House alone as permitted by the Charity Commission on a concessionary basis for the filing of consolidated

financial statements. A summary of the results and financial position of the charity and each of its material subsidiaries

for the reporting year are disclosed in note r3.

Basis of accounting

The House's individual and consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom

Accounting Standards, in particular 'FRS rom: The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland' (FRS zoz).

The House is a public benefit entity for the purposes of FRS roe and a registered charity. The House has therefore also

prepared its individual and consolidated financial statements in accordance with 'The Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their financial statements in accordance with FRS roz' (The Charities SORP
(FRS roe)).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and on the historical cost basis, except For the

measurement of investments and certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value with movements in value reported
within the Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA). The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below and

have been applied consistently throughout the year.

Accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

In preparing financial statements it is necessary to make certain judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the

amounts recognised in the financial statements. The following judgements and estimates are considered by the Governing

Body to have most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Before legacies are recognised in the financial statements, the Governing Body has to exercise judgement as to what
constitutes sufficient evidence of entitlement to the bequest. Sufficient entitlement exists once notification of payment
has been received from the executor(s) of the estate or estate accounts are available which indicate there are suFficient

funds in the estate after meeting liabilities for the bequest to be paid.

With respect to the next financial year, the most significant areas of uncertainty that affect the carrying value of assets

held by the House and its subsidiaries are the level oF investment return and the performance of investment markets.

Income recognition

All income is recognised once the House has entitlement to the income, the economic benefit is probable and the amount

can be reliably measured.

a. Income from fees, Office for Students support and other charges for services

Fees receivable, less any scholarships, bursaries or other allowances granted from the House's unrestricted funds, Office
for Students support and charges for services and use of the premises are recognised and accounted for in the period in

which the related service is provided.

b. Income from donations, grants and legacies

Donations and grants that do not impose specific future performance-related or other specific conditions are recognised

on the date on which the charity has entitlement to the resource, the amount can be reliably measured and the economic
benefit to the House of the donation or grant is probable. Donations and grants subject to performance-related
conditions are recognised as and when those conditions are met. Donations and grants subject to other specific
conditions are recognised as those conditions are met or their Fulfilment is wholly within the control of the House and it
is probable that the specified conditions will be met.

Legacies are recognised following grant of probate and once the House has received sufficient information from the

executor(s) of the deceased's estate to be satisfied that the gift can be reliably measured and that the economic benefit to
the House is probable.
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Donations, grants and legacies accruing for the general purposes oF the House are credited to unrestricted Funds.

Donations, grants and legacies which are subject to conditions as to their use imposed by the donor or set by the terms of
an appeal are credited to the relevant restricted fund or, where the donation, grant or legacy is required to be held as

capital, to the endowment funds. Where donations are received in kind (as distinct from cash or other monetary assets),

they are measured at the fair value of those assets at the date of the gift.

c. Investment income

Interest on bank balances is accounted for on an accrual basis with interest recognised in the period to which the interest
relates.

Income from fixed interest debt securities is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Dividend income and similar distributions are recognised on the date the share interest becomes ex-dividend or when the
right to the dividend can be established.

Income from investment properties is recognised in the period to which the rental income relates.

Expenditure

Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis. A liability and related expenditure is recognised when a legal or
constructive obligation commits the House to expenditure that will probably require settlement, the amount of which
can be reliably measured or estimated.

Grants awarded that are not performance-related are charged as an expense as soon a legal or constructive obligation for
their payment arises. Grants subject to performance-related conditions are expensed as the specified conditions of the

grant are met.

All expenditure including support costs and governance costs are allocated or apportioned to the applicable expenditure
categories in the Statement of Financial Activities (the SOFA).

Support costs which includes governance costs (costs of complying with constitutional and statutory requirements) and
other indirect costs are apportioned to expenditure categories in the SOFA based on the estimated amount attributable to
that activity in the year, either by reference to staff time or the use made of the underlying assets, as appropriate.
Irrecoverable VAT is included with the item of expenditure to which it relates.

Intra-group sales and charges between the House and its subsidiaries are excluded from trading income and expenditure
in the consolidated financial statements.

Leases

Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The costs
of the assets held under finance leases are included within fixed assets and depreciation is charged over the shorter of the
lease term and the assets' usef'ul lives. Assets are assessed For impairment at each reporting date. The corresponding capital
obligations under these leases are shown as liabilities and recognised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between capital repayment and
finance charges in the SOFA so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under

operating leases are charged in the SOFA on a straight line basis over the relevant lease terms. Any lease incentives are

recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis.

Tangible fixed assets

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Expenditure on the acquisition or enhancement of land and on the acquisition, construction and enhancement of
buildings which is directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and amounting
to more than fzo, ooo together with expenditure on equipment costing more than Szo,ooo is capitalised.

Where a part of a building or equipment is replaced and the costs capitalised, the carrying value of those parts replaced is

derecognised and expensed in the SOFA.

Other expenditure on equipment incurred in the normal day-to-day running of the House and its subsidiaries is charged
to the SOFA as incurred.
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S. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of all relevant tangible fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, in

equal annual instalments over their expected useful economic lives as follows:

Freehold properties, including major extensions

Leasehold properties

Building improvements

Equipment

Books

yo years

~o years or period of lease if shorter

io - go years

3 - io years

z% pa reducing balance

Freehold land is not depreciated. The cost of maintenance is charged in the SOFA in the period in which it is incurred.

At the end of each reporting period, the residual values and usef'ul lives of assets are reviewed and adjusted if necessary. In

addition, if events or change in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable then the carrying

values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment

Properties held under a Shared Equity House Purchase scheme are held at the original cost of the House's share and are

not depreciated.

Heritage Assets

The House has chosen to hold heritage assets at cost. The House has a number of assets, including items of art and

historic texts that meet the definition of heritage assets under the SORP. The depreciated historic cost of the majority of
these items is nil. Items purchased are recognised at cost and items donated to the House are recognised at fair value. The
House has taken advantage of the exemption within FRS roz not to disclose transactions before i January zoic as

obtaining fair values For these assets would be impracticable and the cost of obtaining such valuations would outweigh the

benefits to the users of these financial statements

to. Investments

Investment properties are initially recognised at their cost and subsequently measured at their fair value (market value) at

each reporting date. Purchases and sales of investment properties are recognised on exchange of contracts.

Listed investments are initially measured at their cost and subsequently measured at their Fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is based on their quoted price at the balance sheet date without deduction of the estimated future selling costs.

Investments such as hedge funds and private equity Funds which have no readily identifiable market value are initially

measured at their costs and subsequently measured at their fair value at each reporting date without deduction of the

estimated future selling costs. Fair value is based on the most recent valuations available from their respective fund

managers.

Other unquoted investments are valued using primary valuation techniques such as earnings multiples, recent

transactions and net assets where reliable estimates can be made —otherwise at cost less any impairment.

Changes in fair value and gains and losses arising on the disposal of investments are credited or charged to the income or

expenditure section of the SOFA as 'gains or losses on investments' and are allocated to the fund holding or disposing of
the relevant investment.
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Other fmancial instruments

a. Derivatives

Christ Church has employed an interest rate swap on one occasion in zoo8 to fix the cost of its debt for 3o years.

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the date the contract is entered into and are

subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are credited or charged to the income or expenditure section of
the SOFA. Hedge accounting is not currently applied to derivatives.

b. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in hand and short term deposits with a maturity date of three

months or less.

c. Debtors and creditors

I2.

Debtors and creditors receivable or payable within one year of the reporting date are carried at their transaction price.

Debtors and creditors that are receivable or payable in more than one year and not subject to a market rate of interest are

measured at the present value of the expected future receipts or payment discounted at a market rate of interest.

Stocks

I3.

I4.

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, cost being the purchase price on a first in, first out basis.

Foreign currencies

The functional and presentation currency of the House and its subsidiaries is the pound sterling.

Transactions denominated in Foreign currencies during the year are translated into pounds sterling using the spot

exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

translated into pounds sterling at the rates applying at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the translation of monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the exchange rates at the reporting date are recognised in the

income and expenditure section of the SOFA.

Total Return investment accounting

The House's Statutes authorise the House to adopt a 'total return' basis for the investment of its permanent endowment.

The House can invest its permanent endowment without regard to the capital/income distinctions of standard trust law

and with discretion to apply any part of the accumulated total return on the investment as income for spending each

year. Until this power is exercised, the total return is accumulated as a component of the endowment known as the

unapplied total return that can be either be retained for investment or release to income at the discretion of the

Governing Body.

Fund accounting

The total funds of the House and its subsidiaries are allocated to unrestricted, restricted or endowment funds based on

the origins of the terms set by the donors or set by the terms of an appeal. Endowment funds are further sub-divided into

permanent and expendable.

Unrestricted funds can be used in furtherance of the objects of the House at the discretion of the Governing Body. The

Governing Body may decide that part of the unrestricted F'unds shall be used in future For a specific purpose and this will

be accounted for by transfers to appropriate designated Funds.

Restricted funds comprise gifts, legacies and grants where the donors specified that the funds are to be used for particular

purposes of the House. They consist of either gifts where the donor has specified that both the capital and any income

arising must be used For the purposes given or the income on gifts where the donor has required or permitted the capital

be maintained and with the intention that the income will be used for specific purposes within the House's objects.

Permanent endowment Funds arise where donors specify that the funds are to be retained as capital for the permanent

benefit of the House. Any part of the total return arising From the capital that is allocated to income will be accounted for

as unrestricted Funds unless the donor has placed restrictions on the use of that income, in which case it will be accounted

for as a restricted fund.
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Expendable endowment funds are similar to permanent endowment in that they have been given, or the House has

determined based on the circumstances that they have been given, For the long term benefit of the House. However, the

Governing Body may at its discretion determine to spend all or part of the capital.

t6. Pension costs

FRS ioz makes the distinction between a group plan and a multi-employer scheme. A group plan consists of a collection

of entities under common control typically with a sponsoring employer. A multi-employer scheme is a scheme For entities

not under common control and represents an industry-wide scheme such as Universities Superannuation Scheme or one

for employers in the same locality such as the University of Oxford Staff Pension Scheme. The accounting for a multi-

employer scheme where the employer has entered into an agreement with the scheme that determines how the employer

will F'und a deficit results in the recognition of a liability for the contributions payable that arise from the agreement (to

the extent that they relate to the deficit) and the resulting expense in profit or loss in accordance with section z8 of FRS
ioz. The trustees are satisfied that Universities Superannuation Scheme and the University of Oxford Staff Pension

Scheme both meet the definition of a multi-employer scheme and has therefore recognised the discounted fair value of
the contractual contributions under the recovery plans in existence at the date of approving the financial statements.

The House also operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to these arrangements are charged to the

SOFA in the period in which they are payable.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities

For the year ended gz July zo19

Notes

Unrestricted

Funds

5'ooo

Restricted

Funds

F,'ooo

Endowed

Funds

f, 'ooo

2,OI9

Total
oooo

2oi8

Total

F,'ooo

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM:

Charitable activities:

Teaching, research and residential

Cathedral School

Cathedral

Other trading income

Donations and legacies

Investments:

Investment income

Total return allocated to income

Other income

Total income

4
I4

Io&563

»zr6
I56

I30

I58

9 395

IO9

23,663

243

475

3I

5,7o6

I7

6~72

»453

I6,798

(I5,tor)

4)I57

Io&563

2»I6
4o6
936

3)058

I6,987

34)2,92

Io,58I

2,I3I

44I

935

3&I69

I7,642

I33

35 o32

EXPENDITURE ON:

Charitable activities:

Teaching, research and residential

Other charitable activities

Cathedral School

Cathedral

2I&823

2&469

I 793

4,o8o

59o

250

25&9o3

59o
2,&469

2,,043

ao 734
686

»366
I 775

Generating funds:

Fundraising

Trading expenditure

Investment management costs

Interest payable on loan notes

Total expenditure

906
652

I43

27,786 4)92,0

4»5o
I&027

5)277

906
652

4)393
I&02,7

37)983

8o8

846

3,6I5

I&027

3I 857

Net Income/(Expenditure) before gains (4 I23) I&552, (I,I2O) (3 69I) 3»75

Net gains on investments

(Losses)/Gains on complex financial instruments

Net Income

II, 12

(I.244)

(5,367)

28,o95

I)552, 2,6,975

28&095

(I 244)
2,3&I60

47,607

525

5I,3o7

Transfers between funds I9 33o (659) 329

Other recognised gains/losses

Gains/(losses) on revaluation of fixed assets

Net movement in funds for the year

Fund balances brought forward

Funds carried forward at 3I July

I9

595

(4 442)

3,7o6

(736)

893

Io&2,03

27)3o4

55o&264

595

23)755

564&I73

5I 3o7

52»866

II)096 577&568 587&928 564,I73
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Consolidated and College Balance Sheets

As at 3r July 2,or9

Notes

2,019
Group
f,'000

2018

Group

f.'000

2019 z018

The House The House

5'000 5'000

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets

Property investments

Other investments I2,

17&476

2,13&055

405)623

13,661

I56&727

433 573

17)464
187,206

430)434

IO&673

151,829

438,493

Total Fixed Assets 636&154 603&961 635)104 600&995

CURRENT ASSETS

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Is

718

3&851

15)300

6zi

5 S78

18,z68

718

5&175

14,28o

6zo

9&601

17,438

Total Current Assets 19)869 2,0)173 27 659

LIABILITIES
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 16 7&069 6,4z6 6,379 6,033

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

12,8oo

648,954

18,041

6zz, ooz

13&794

648&898

2I, 626

622, 621

CREDITORS: falling due after more than one year

Provisions for liabilities and charges

NET ASSETS BEFORE PENSION LIABILITY

17

18

56,662 55,418 56,662 ss 4»

105 105

592)187 566,473 592&131 567&092

Defmed benefit pension scheme liability 23 4&259 2,,300 4&259 2, 300

TOTAL NET ASSETS 587,928 564,173 587,872 564,79z

FUNDS OF THE COLLEGE

Endowment funds

Restricted funds

19

S77,S68

II&096

550,264

10&2,03

577,568

II)096

SSo,z64

10&203

Unrestricted funds

Designated funds

General funds

Revaluation reserve

Pension and loan swap reserve 19& 23

6oo

5&036

4)549
(Io)921)

486

6,984

3&954

(7,718)

6oo

9)529

(Io&921)

486
» 557

(7,718)

587,928 564,173 587,872 564 792

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Governing Body of Christ Church on 4 December 2019.

Professor lan Watson

Censor Theologiae

Mr James Lawrie

Treasurer
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Christ Church

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 3r July zor9

Notes

z,or9
f'ooo

zor8

f'ooo

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities z6 (r3,or 8) (7 955)

Cash Rows kom investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments

Cash inflows from new borrowing

Interest payable on loan notes

Investment management costs

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of invesunents

Purchase of investments

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

I6&987

(r,oz7)

(4 393)

(3,687)
7»o44
(7z 3z7)

7&597

r7, 64z

(r,oz7)

(3,6t5)

(z,386)

93 59t

(94,8t4)

9 39t

Cash Aows kom flnanciug activities

Repayments of borrowing

Receipt of endowment

Net cash provided by (used in) flnancing activities
»453
»453

I&75I

I&75I

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period (z,968) 3,&87

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period r8,z68 t5, o8t

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 27 r5&300 t8, z68
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Christ Church

Notes to the lrnancial statements

For the year ended 3r July 2,or9

I INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Teaching, Research and Residential

Unrestricted funds

Tuition fees - UK and EU students

Tuition Fees —Overseas students

Other Fees

Other Office For Students support

Other academic income

College residential income

Charitable visitor income

Other income

20I9
F,'000

I,874

745

30

327

Iz6

4 429

3,05?.

0

Io&563

zor8

f, '000

1&770

68

332

8S

4,668

z, Szt

Io,5SI

Total Teaching, Research and Residential Io)563 Io,58I

Unrestricted Funds

Cathedral School income

Cathedral income

Restricted funds

Cathedral income

z, zt6

I56

2 372

2,I3I

IOI

2 232

333

Endowed Funds

Cathedral income 7 7

7 7

2,6zz 2,572

Total income from charitable activities I3)I85 I3 I53

The above analysis includes fz, 936k received from Oxford University from publicly accountable Funds under the Collegiate Funding Formula Scheme (zot7-IS:

Iz, 936kl.

Under the terms of the undergraduate student support package offered by Oxford University to students from lower income households, the House's share oF the

fees waived amounted to &k lzot7-IS: FSkl. These are not included in the fee income reported above.

DONATIONS AND LEGACIES

Donations and Legacies

Unresuicted funds

Resuicted funds

Endowed Funds

20I9
F.'000

I30

475
2 453
3)058

zot8
I'000

I3I

r&z87

1,75I

3,I69

INCOME FROM OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
20I9

f.'000
2018

f.'ooo

Subsidiary company trading income 936
936

935

935
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Christ Church

Notes to the 6nancial statements

For the year ended 3I July' 2,0I9

4 INVES'IDENT INCOME

Fynrestrieted funds

Agricultural rent

Bank interest

Other interest

20I9
I'ooo

So

76

I58

20IS

Eooo

27

50

Restricted funds

Other interest 3I I4

3I I4

EndrIused funds

Agricultural rent

Commercial rent

Other property income

Equity dividends

Other investment income

6rz

4 093

»477
725

9,891

I6,798

564

3 540

I,644
I, 550

I0,252

I7 550

Total Investment income I6,987

ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE

Charitable expenditure

Direct stafF costs allocated to:
Teaching, research and residential

20I9
5'000

9 99I

zot8

Eooo

7,S56

Other direct costs allocated to:
Teaching, research and residential

Other charitable activities

Cathedral school

Cathedral

I3,63I

590

z,4r6
2,043

Io,665

686

2,,3II

»775

Support and governance costs allocated to:

Teaching, research and residential

Cathedral school

Total charitable expenditure

z,zSI

53

3I,005

2, 2I3

55

z5, 562

Expenditure on generating funds

Direct staff costs allocated to:
Fundraising

Trading and visitor expenditure

Investment management costs

569

372
0

448

z66
I6

Other direct costs allocated to:
Fundraising

Trading and visitor expenditure

Investment management costs

Interest payable on notes

z6z

IS6

4,250

I,027

2,9I

496
3,465

I,027

Support and governance costs allocated to:

Fundraising

Trading and visitor expenditure

Investment management costs

Total expenditure on generating funds

75

94
243

6,978

69
84

234

6,z96

Total expenditure 37,983 3I,S57

The zot8 expenditure of E32,857k represented 622, 252k from unrestricted Funds, E5,o97k from restricted funds and E4,508k from endowed funds.

The House is liable to be assessed for contribution under the provisions of Statute XV of the University of Oxford. The College Contribution Fund is used to

make grants and loans to colleges on the basis of need. Contributions are calculated annually in accordance with regulations made by the Council of the University

The teaching, research and residential costs include College Contribution payable oFE374k (20IS- E-rk).
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Christ Church

Notes to the 6nancial statements

For the year ended 3I July zot9

6 ANALYSIS OF SUPPORT AND GOVERNANCE COSTS

Generating

Funds
f'000

Teaching Public

and Worship, Choir

Research gc Choir School

f.'OOO f.'ooo
Heritage

f'ooo

20I9
Total

f'ooo

Financial administration

Domestic administration

Human resources

IT
Depreciation

Loan interest payable

Other Finance charges

Governance costs

2I5

72

I3

I

I,027

I&339

235

695

27

327
4I3

49S

39

47
2,28I

53

0

53

450
767

27
340
467

50

47
3,673

Generating

Funds
f, 'ooo

Teaching Public

and Worship, Choir

Research Sc Choir School
f'ooo f'000

Heritage
f.'ooo

zoI8
Total

f.'ooo

Financial administration

Domestic administration

IT
Depreciation
I.oan interest payable

Other finance charges

Governance costs

20I

6I

14

2

I,027

9
0

I&3I4

189

587

387

498
37
4S

2&2I3

55

0

55

39ci

648
40I
524

I&52,5

46
48

0 3,582

Financial and domestic administration and IT cosrs are attributed according to the estimated staff time spent on each activiry.

Depreciation costs and profit or loss on disposal of fixed assets are attributed according to rhe use made of the underlying assets.

Interest and other finance charges are attributed according to the purpose of the related financing.

Governance costs comprise:
Auditor's remuneration - audit services

Auditor's remuneration —other services

Other governance costs

2,0I9
f'ooo

46
I

zoIS

f, 'ooo

47 48

No amount has been included in governance costs For the direct employment costs or reimbursed expenses oF the House's Fellosss on the basis that these payments

relate to the Fellow's involvemenc in the House's charitable activities. Details of the remuneration of the Fellows and their reimbursed expenses are included as a

separate note within these financial statements.

GRANTS AND AWARDS

During the year the House funded academic awards and bursaries to students from its restricted and unrestricted funds

as follows:

20I9
f'ooo

20IS

f.'ooo

Unrestricted funds

Grants to individuals:

Scholarships, prizes and granrs

Bursaries and financial assistance awards

Graduate Studentships

Grants to ocher institucions

Total unrestricted 88

55

48

I03

Restricted funds
Grants to individuals:

Scholarships, prizes and grants

Bursaries and financial assistance awards

Total restricted

327
726

I&053

343

58o

923

Total grants and awards I&I4I I 026

Widun the bursaries and financial assistance awards figure above, is the cost to the House oF the Oxford Bursary Scheme. Undergraduate students of the House

received fiick (zor8: fiioki. Some of those students also received fee waivers amounting to fzk (zoi8: fSk).

The above costs are induded within the charitable expenditure on Teaching, Research and Residential.
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Christ Church

Notes to the lznancial statements

For the year ended 3I July 2ot9

8 STAFF COSTS

The aggregate stafF costs For the year were as follows.

2OI9
f'ooo

zot8

f.'ooo

Salaries and wages

Social security costs

Pension costs:

Defined benefit schemes

Pension deficit liability movement (note 23)

Other benefits

7&6OI

7IS

Ir295

I~929

754

7,300

674

1,193

(i34)

745

Iz)297

Stal'f costs of f96zk (zoi7-t8: F884k) included in total Cathedral costs and Fr,738k (zor 7-I8: Xt,724k) included in total Cathedral school costs are not included in

the aggregate payroll costs shown above.

The average number of employees of the House, excluding Trustees, on a Full time equivalent basis was as Follows; 2OI9 zor8

Tuition and research

College residential

Trading and visitor

Cathedral

Cathedral School

Fundraising

Support

62
IIj
22

2I

67

83

36

III
22,

62

4
76

Total 379 355

The average number oF employed Trustees during the year was as follows:

University Lecturers

CUF Lecturers

Facuhy Lecturers

Other teaching and research

Other

2I
I6

5

I2

20

12

Total

The Following information relates to the employees of the House excluding the House Trustees. Details of the remuneration and reimbursed expenses of the

House Trustees is included as a separate note in these financial statements.

The number oF employees (excluding members of Governing Body) during the year whose gross pay and benefits (excluding employer NI and pension

contributions) Falling within the following bands was:

56o,ooi-f jo,ooo

6jo,oor-fSo, ooi

The number of the above employees with retirement benefits accruing was as follows:

In defined benefits schemes

In defined contribution schemes

7
0

The House's contributions to defined contribution pension schemes totalled
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Christ Church

Notes to the Bnancial statements

For the year ended 3I July 2or9

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Group

Cost
At start of year

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Assets in the

course of
construction

f.'ooo

I,893

3,508

0

Leasehold

land and

buildings

f.'ooo

427

Freehold

land and

buildings
f'000

I0,205

I6

Plant and

machinery

f, 'OOO

6,S65

I63

(3)

595

Total
f'ooo

I9&380

3,687
(3)

595

At end of year 5)40I 427 Io&22,I 7,62o 2,3,659

Depreciation and impairment

At start of year

Depreciation charge for the year

Depreciation on disposals

Impairment

3,zt6

3I2

2, 503

Iss

(3)

0

5&729

467
(3)
0

At end of year 3,5z8 ~655 6,283

Net book value
At end of year 5,40I 427 6,693 4)965 I7)476

At stan of year I,S93 4I7 6,989 4,36z I3,66I

The House

Cost
At start of year

Assets transferred From subsidiary

Additions

Disposals

Assets in the

course of
construction

f.'ooo

I,893

0

3,5oS

0

Leasehold

land and

buildings

f.'ooo

4I7

Freehold

land and

buildings

f, 'ooo

9,985

22I

I6

Plant and

machinery

f.'ooo

3 253

4 I42

I63

(3)

Total
f'000

Is&548

4,363

3,687

(3)

At end of year 5)40I 427 Io)22,2, 7)555 23&595

Depreciation and impairment

At start of year

Assets nansferred From subsidiary

Charge for the year

On disposals

Impairment

3,263

56

3I2

I,7I2

737

I54

(3)

0

4)875

793
466

(3)

0

At end of year 3&53I 2,6oo 6,I3I

Net book value

At end of year 5,40I 427 6,69I 4)955 I7)464

At start of year I,893 4I7 6,8zz I,54I Io)673

The House has substantial long-held historic assets all of which are used in the course of the House's teaching and research activities. These comprise listed

buddings on the House site, together with their contents comprising works of art, ancient books and manuscripts and other treasured artefacts. Because of their

age and, in many cases, unique nature, reliable historical cost information is not available For these assets and could not be obtained except at c(isproportionate

expense. However, in the opinion of the Trustees the depreciated historical cost of these assets is now immaterial.
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Christ Church

Notes to the lznancial statements

For the year ended 3« July 2o«9

zo HERITAGE ASSETS

The House holds a collection of early printed books, manuscripts and photographs, circa 650 paintings, circa 3,ooo prints and circa z,ooo drawings, a collection of
tgth and z9th century English glass and a number of Russian icons of the 17th and 18th century. All of these were donated to the House between 171o and 198o on

the understanding that it will preserve them and make them accessible to scholars and, within appropriate limits, to members oF the public. Heritage assets are

held at historical cost which in the opinion of the Trustees is now immaterial. The Trustees consider the cost to carry out a valuation of these heritage assets held

would not be commensurate with the benefit to the users of the financial statements.

Christ Church is one of the major research libraries in the world, home to many thousands of priceless documents and collections. They encompass a vast array oF

rare and unique materials in a number of formats, ranging from illuminated manuscripts and early printed books to family papers, maps, artefacts and images.

These collections support research by members of Christ Church and Oxford University, as well as an international community of scholars.

Christ Church is unique among the Oxford and Cambridge colleges in possessing an important collection of Old Master paintings and drawings, housed in a

purpose-built gallery of considerable architectural interest. The Picture Gallery is open to members of the public, Christ Church and Oxford University and the

Old Master collection has been on view to the public since z768. No material acquisitions or disposals have occurred over the last 5 years.

Iz PROPERTY INVESTMENTS

Group
Agricultural

5'000
Commercial

F.'000

Residential

and Other
I'000

2,0I9
Total
5'000

2018

Total

f.'000

Valuation at start of year

Additions and improvements at cost

Disposals

Revaluation gains/(losses) in the year

65,z38

21,380

(3 544)

7,250

6z, z61.

34»3
(5,675)

»575

3o,328

0

»239

z56,727
55&483

(9&219)

Io,o64

149 798
10,741

(32,427)
28, 6z5

Valuation at end of year 90 324 91,164 3z, 567 2I3&055 156,727

The House
Agricultural

f, '000
Commercial

f.'000

Residential

and Other

f.'ooo

20I9
Total
I'000

zo18

Toral

f.'ooo

Valuation at start of year

Additions and improvements at cost

Disposals

Revaluation gains/(losses) in the year

6o,336

430

(3,544)

7,250

6z,z64

34 «3
(5,675)

»575

30 329

0
0

z, z3S

151&829

34&533

(9&2«9)

Io&063

149,501

6,141

(3z,4z8)

zS, 6z5

Valuation at end of year 64 472 91,?67 3z, 567 z87,2o6 151,829

A formal valuation of the agricultural, commercial and residential properties was prepared by Savills (LSIP) Limited as at 31 July zot9.

In addition to the direct property investments stated above, the House holds a total of f50.zm of indirect properry in four property specific investments as well as

exposure in diversified funds.

zz OTHER INVESTMENTS

All investments are held at fair value.

Group investments

Valuation at start of year

New money invested

Amounts withdrawn

(Decrease)/ increase in cash held

Reinvested income

Investment management Fees

Increase in value of investments

20I9
oooo

433&573

z6,843

(57 232)

(5&593)

0

18&032

zoz8

F000

391,67z

84,072

(72,125)

10,962
0
0

18,992

Group investments at end of yeat 405&62,3 433 573
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Christ Church

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 3I July ror9

Iz OTHER INVESTMENTS CO~D
The House investments

Valuation at start of year

New money invested

Amounts withdrawn

(Decrease)/ increase in cash held

Reinvested income

Investment management fees

Increase in value of investments

20I9
f,'000

433)573
I6)843

(S7 232)

(5)593)
0

IS&032

zor8

Zooo

39I,672

84,072

(7z,rzs)

10,962
0
0

I8,992

405,623 433 573

Investment in subsidiaries 24)SII 4,920

The House investments at end of year 430&434 438,493

Group investments comprise:

Held outside

rhe UK
f.'000

Held in

the UK

f 'ooo

2,0I9
Total
f,'000

Held outside

the UK
f.'ooo

Held in

the UK
f.'ooo

zot8

Total

f, 'ooo

Equity investments

Global multi-asser funds

Property Funds

Deferred consideration

Fixed term deposits and cash

247

3I6,7zS

50 247
I6,200

22, 2,0I

247
326,7z8
50&247

I6)200
22)20I

227

33o,76o

53 I92
zr, 6oo

27 794

22/

330,760

53 '92
2I,600

27 794

Total group investments 0 405,623 405)62,3 0 433 573 433 573

I3 PARENT AND SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The House holds too% of the issued share capital in Christ Church Developments Limited, a company providing design and build construction services to the

House, and too% of the issued share capital in Christ Church Oxford Trading Limited, a company providing conference and other event services on the House's

premises. The House also holds too% of the issued share capital of Christ Church (Evesham) Limited, Christ Church (Daventry) Limited, Thomas Wolsey

Property Limited and Wick Farming Limited all of which hold agricultural land with long term development potential. Christ Church is also the ultimate parent

company ol Christ Church Library Charity Limited, a company limited by guarantee which holds the library book stock.

Wick Farming Ltd was acquired during the year, the Fair value of the consideration was cash of SI9,89rk. The net assets of Wick Farming Ltd at the date of

acquisition was $2,276k, being land with a carrying value oFf2,,977k and creditors of F70rk. The fair value of the land was equal to fzo, 592k; giving a fair value

adjustment to the assets acquired oFIt7, 6I5k.

The resulrs and their assets and liabilities of the parent and subsidiaries at the year end were as Follows:

I.'000 I'000

The House Christ Church

(Evesham)

Limited

Christ Church

(Daventry)

Limited

f.'000

Thomas

Wolsey

Property

f.'000

Income

Expenditure

Donation to the House under gift aid

33,27I

(37,074)
I02

(3)

0
(3)

0

33

(25)

0

Resuh for the year (3 70I) (3) 8

Total assets

Total liabilities

6SS,277

(67,4o5)

I04
(zz)

325

(rot)
4 743

(112)

Net funds at the end of year 587,S72 2,14 4,63I
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Notes to the 6nancial statements

For the year ended 3I July zor9

13 PARENT AND SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS CONTINUED

Income

Expenditure

Donation to the House under gift aid

Wick

Farming

Limited

f, 'ooo

45

(x6)

0

Christ Church

Developments

Limited

f'000

Christ Church

Odbrd
Trading

f'000

941

(839)

(Io2)

Christ Church

Library

Charity

f.'ooo

(23)

0

Result for the year 29 0 0 (23)

Total assets

Total liabilities

3,138

(835)

5S 1.&o98 0

(42) (I,o98) 0

Net funds at the end of year 2,303 16

14 STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT TOTAL RETURN

The Trustees have adopted a duly authorised policy oF total return accounting For the House's investment returns with effect From I August zoot. The investment

return to be applied as income is calculated as 3.z5% (zoxS: 3.z5%) (plus costs) of the average of the year-end values of the relevant investments in each of the

preceding five years. The preserved (frozen) value of the invested endowment capital represents its open market value in zooz together with a)I subsequent

endowments valued at date of gift.

Trust for

Investment

f.'ooo

Permanent Endowment

Unapplied

Total

Return

f,'ooo
Total

f.'OOO

Expendable

Endowment

f.'ooo

Total
Endowments

f'ooo

At the beginning of the year:

Gift component of the permanent endowment

Unapplied total return

Expendable endowment

Total Endowments

13,296

13&2,96

8,858

8,858

13,296

S,S58

528,110

13,296

S,85S

Sz8,11o

22)154 528,110 550,264

Movements in the reporting period:

Gift of endowment funds

Investment return; total investment income

Investment return: realised and unrealised gains and losses

Less: Investment management costs

Other transfers

Total

Unapplied total return allocated to income in the reporting period

Expendable endowments transferred to income

360

685

1,145

(»5)
44

1,659

(569)

36o

685

1,145

(215)

44
2,019

(569)
0

2,&093

16,120

26,950

(s,o6z)

z85

4o,3S6

(14,532)

-' 453

16,8oS

28,095

(S,277)

329

42 405

(15,101)

0

(569) (569) (14 532) (IS,xox)

Net movements in reporting period 36o I)090 I)450 25&854 2,7)304

At end of the reporting period:

Gift component oF the permanent endowment

Unapplied total return

Expendable endowment

Total Endowments

1.3,656

13)656

9,948

9&948

13,656

9,94S

13,656

9 948

553,964 553,964
2,3)604 553)964 577,568

15 DEBTORS

Amounts Falling due within one year:

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by House members

Amounts owed by Group undertakings

Taxation and social security

Prepayments and accrued income

Other debtors

2019
Group
f'ooo

I&635

415
0

3

1,783
15

zo18

Group
f'000

1,905

373
0

3 300
0

2.019
The House

f'ooo

x,46x

415

790
2,

1,78z

15

2018

The House

f.'ooo

»759

373

85o

0

3 279
0

Amounts falling due after more than one year.

Loans 3 340

3)85I S S78 5&175 9,601
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I6 CREDITORS: falling due within one year
2,0I9

Group
f.'000

zot8

Group

f.'ooo

2,0I9
The House

f, '000

zot8

The House
5'000

Trade creditors

Amounts owed to House Members

Amounts owed to Group undertakings

Taxation and social security

College Contribution

Accruals and deferred income

»993
234

0
542

374
z,926

3,I76
I46

0

505

0

»599

2&597

234
IS

452

374
2&704

z, 845

I47
I6

433

0

2,592

7&069 6,4z6 6,379 6,o33

I7 CREDITORS: falling due after more than one year
20I9

Group
f, '000

zotS

Group

f.'OOO

2,0I9
The House

f'000

zot8

The House

8000

Notes payable

Bank loans

Loan swap fair value

40&000

Io&000

6,662

40,000
Io,ooo

40&000

Io&000

6,662

40,000
Io,ooo

5,4IS

56,66z 55,4IS 56,662 ss,4»

On I February zooS the House borrowed Itom from Barclays Bank pic at a fioating rate of 3-month LIBOR plus o.z%; interest is payable quarterly in arrears. The

loan is repayable on I February zo3S. The House is investing a sum each year in a designated fund to contribute to the repayment of this loan in zo3S, the fund

value at 3I July zor9 was f773k.

On I February zooS the House also entered into an interest rate swap with Barclays Bank pic, under which it receives 3-month LIBOR and pays a fixed rate of

imerest of 4.783%. The notional amount of rhe swap is ftom, the swap is settled quarterly in arrears and expires on I February z038. The fair value of the interest

rate swap as at 3I July zot9 has been provided at f6,662k (zor8: f5,4ISk).

On IS September 2or6 the House entered into an agreement with the Pension Insurance Corporation for the issue of (i) 220m 2.567!o Series A Notes repayable on

I4 September zo63 and (ii) fzom z.567!o Series B Notes repayable on Is September zo64 ("the notes). Interest is payable on Is March and Is September each year.

IS PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
2.0I9

Group

I,'000

zot8

Group

f.'000

20I9
The House

5'000

zor8

The House

f.'000

At start of year

Charged in the Sratement of Financial Activiues

Settled in the year

III
8

(I4)

zo8

(82)

(I5)

III
8

(I4)

z08

(Sz)

(Is)

At end of pear Ios I05

The above provision relates to pension liabilities for pensions payable to ex-employees by the House and not funded through an external pension scheme. The

actuarial valuation has been provided by Xafinity Consulting as at 3I July zor9.
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19 ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENTS ON FUNDS

Endowment Funds - Permanent

Student Support Funds

Academic Posts Funds

Library Funds

At I August

zo18

f.'000

8,149

13 941

64

Income

F.'ooo

301

742
2

Expenditure

f.'000

(7S)

(136)

(I)

Transfers

I.'ooo

(213)

(3u)

(I)

Gains/

(losses)

f.'000

417

725

3

At 31 July
2,019

F,'000

8,576
14)961

67

Endowment Funds - Expendable

Heyman-Moritz Benefaction

Dr South (3/Sths)

Lee Benefaction

Mercury Fund (5/7ths)

Buildings Funds

Gardens Sc Grounds Funds

Sports Clubs Funds

Library Funds

Picture Gallery Funds

Academic Posts Funds

Srudent Support Funds

Cathedral Sr. Chorister Support Funds

Benefices Funds

Other Funds

General Endowment Funds

Total Endowment Funds

49 902

31,872

u, 716

10,690

5,169

494
0

2 937
413

z6,778
2,1,519

10,450

19 452

8,z71

328,447
sso, z64

1,519

956

357

325

157

15

26

92

13

1,14.5

967
695

592

275

11,079
19,z58

(477)
(30o)

(113)

(Ioz)

(49)

(s)
0

(28)

(4)

(259)

(209)
(too)
(1.86)

(79)
(3,151)

(5,277)

(I 383)

(87o)

(32S)

(296)

(143)

(14)

0

(So)

(11)

(643)

(556)

(z61)

(539)

(37)

(9,o89)
(14,772)

»539
»598

596

544

z63

25

I
Iso

2,1

I,IIO

551

989
422

16,763

52)100

33,256
Iz&231

It, r61

5)397
515

27
3)071

432,

z8)399
2.2,831

rt)335
zo, 3o8

8,852

344)049
28,095 577,568

Restricted Income Funds - Permanent

Student Support Funds

Library Funds

Academic Posts Funds

Sub-total Restricted income (Permanent)

148

7
223

(145)

0

(»0)
(395)

157

310

468

16r

8

z84
453

Restricted Income Funds - Expendable

Heyman-Moritz Benefaction

Dr South (3/sths)

Lee Benefaction

Mercury Fund (5/7ths)

Buildings

Gardens Sc Grounds Funds

Sports Clubs Funds

Library Funds

Picture Gallery Funds

Academic Posts Funds

Student Support Funds

Cathedral Sc Chorister Support Funds

Benefices Funds

Other Funds

Sub-total Restricted income (Expendable)

58

1,236

229

157

14

0
0

z6

13

S68

1,155

27

73
142

3 998

21

71

63

40
195

(»394)
(5S6)

(339)

(343)

(I)

(I)
0

(7o)

(6)

(529)

(S42)

(2.6o)

(4)

(137)

(4,212.)

1,383

87o

325

297

4
I

0

78

5

s64
sz8

259

21

145

4,48o

47
I&541

2,15

16

34
12,

974
1,2,04

27
90

190
4)461

Buildings Funds

Gardens gc Grounds Funds

Sports Funds

Library Funds

Picture Gallery Funds

Academic Posts Funds

Student Support Funds

Cathedral Sc Chorister Support Funds

Other Funds

Sub-total Restricted income funds

4,316

38

10

105

63

25

197
8z6

5,827

6z

5

32

0

91

z67

569

(46)

(32)

0

(24)

(7)

(»)
(96)
(12)

(71)

(313)

87

0

(2)

0

(s)
0

19

99

4)419
6

15

56
0

187
I,o81

307
6,182

Total Restricted Funds 10,203 766 (4 920) 5 047
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I9 ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENTS ON FUNDS CONTINUED
At I Augusr

z,ot8

I,'000
Income

F.'000
Expenditure

F'000
Transfers

8000

Gains/

(losses)

F.'000

At 3I July
20I9

F.'000

Unrestricted Funds

Designated funds

General funds

Defined benefit pension scheme reserve

Loan swap fair value reserve

4S6

» 557

(z,3oo)

(5,4IS)

Io6

14,05I
0

(zn)
(25.537)

(I 959)
0

z6I

9,464
0 0

(I,244)

6oo

9r535

(4&259)

(6,662)

Total Unrestricted Funds - The House 4 325 I4 I57 (27,749) 9 725 (I 244) (786)

Designated Funds - subsidiaries

General funds - subsidiaries

Revaluation reserve - subsidiaries

(6I9)
0

»I (37)
0 595

(545)

595

Total Unrestricted Funds - subsidiaries

Total Unrestricted Funds - Group

Total Funds

(6I9)

3,7o6

564,I73

I» (37)

I4,268 (z7,7S6)

34»92 (37,983)

9 725

595 50

(649) (736)

27 446 587,9z8

zo FUNDS OF THE HOUSE DETAILS

The following is a summary of the origins and purposes of each oF the Funds

Endowment Funds - Permanent:

Grouped Funds for restricted purposes A consolidation of capital balances of past donations where related income, but not the original capital,

can be used For rhe resnicted purposes of the charity as indicated in the grouped headings.

Endowment Funds - Expendable:

I. Heyman-Moritz Benefaction Capital balance of past donations where related income, or income and capiul, can be used For the

restricted purposes of the charity. This is a mixed use fund supporting rhe costs ofJoint Academic posts,

the cost of up to four Career Development Fellow Scientists, graduate bursaries and undergraduate

financial support and contribution to major building development projects.

z. Dr South (3/5ths) Capital balance of past donations where related income, or income and capital, can be used for the

restricted purposes of the charity towards the augmentation of small Benefices in the patronage of the

Dean and Chapter and to award annual grants to Incumbents of the iz Livings specified in Dr South's

will, extended to include two Further Livings by Court Order dated zo May, I869 and as subsequently

extended.

3. Lee Benefaction Capital balance of past donations where related income, or income and capital, can be used for the

restricted purposes of paying the stipend and incidental expenses of the Lee Readers in Anatomy,

Chemistry and Physics, and in the case of accumulated revenue oF the furtherance of any branch of
medical or scientific teaching or research.

4. Mercury Fund (5/7ths) Capiul balance of past donations where related income, or income and capital, can be used For rhe

resnicted purpose of the advancement of learning, science or education with particular reference to the

preservation and development of the tutorial system.

5. Grouped Funds for restricted purposes A consolidation of capital balances oF past donations where related income, or income and capiul, can be

used For the restricted purposes of the charity as indicated in the grouped headings.

6. General Endowment Funds A consolidation of giFts and donations where either income, or income and capital, can be used for the

general purposes of the charity.
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2o FUNDS OF THE HOUSE DETAILS CO~D
Restricted Funds:

Restricted income from Permanent Income generated from Permanent Endowment not spent and available for future costs on the restricted

purposes of the charity as indicated in the grouped headings.

Restricted income from Expendable Income generated from Expendable Endowments I to 5 not spent and available for future costs of the

restricted purposes applicable to the endowment funds.

Restricted income funds A consolidation of gifts and donations where both income and capital can be used For the restricted

purposes of the charity as indicated in the grouped headings.

Designated Funds

Designated Funds Unrestricted Funds allocated by Governing Body for furure costs as designated and therefore are not

available for expenditure on the House's general purposes.

The General Unrestricted Funds represent accumulated income from the House's activities and other sources that are available For the general purposes of the

House.

2I ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
Unrestricted

Funds

f.'ooo

Restricted

Funds

f.'000

Endowment

Funds

f '000

20I9
Total
f'000

Tangible fixed assets

Property investments

Other investments

Net current assets

Long term liabilities

Pension fund and loan swap provisions

I3 254

0

I,I09

5 927
(Io,ooo)

(u, 026)

4,222

0

6,874
0

II3,054

404 524

0

(40,ooo)
0

I7,476
2I3&054

405162,3
I2,80I

(5o,ooo)
(It,o26)

(736) II,096 577,568 587,928

Unrestricted

Funds

f.'ooo

Restricted

Funds

5'000

Endowment

Funds

8000

20I8
Total
oooo

Tangible fixed assets

Property investments

Other investments

Net current assets

Long term liabilities

Pension fund and loan swap provisions

9 54I
0

36
II,958

(Io,ooo)

(7,829)

4,I2,0
0
0

6,o83

0
I56,727

433 537
0

(4o,ooo)
0

I3&66I

I561727

4331573
I8,o4I

(5o,ooo)

(7»9)

3,7o6 I0,203 550,264 564,I73

22 TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION

Those Fellows who are the Trustees of the House For the purposes of charity law receive no remuneration For acting as charity trustees, but are paid by either or

both of the University and the House for the academic services they provide to the House.

Most trustees of the House fall into the following categories:

' Head of House
' Professorial Fellow
~ OfFicial Fellow
' Fellow by Special Election
' Research Fellow
~ Canon Professors

No trustee receives any remuneration for acting as a trustee. However, those trustees who are also employees of the House receive salaries For rheir work as

employees, Where possible, these salaries are paid on external academic and academic-related scales and often are joint arrangements with the University of Oxford.

All Official and Research Fellows are eligible for a Housing Allowance, which is disclosed within the salary figures below.
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TRUSTEES' RElVBPKRATION CONTINUED

The Salaries Board makes recommendations relating to the remuneration of Members of Governing Body as well as to other members of the House's academic

staff who are not members of Governing Body and a small number of other members of staff: The Board initiates proposals relating to remuneration and also

considers recommendations initiated by other committees. The Board has five internal members and three external members. The Statutes of Christ Church

provide (a) that the Board can only make recommendations relating to remuneration of all or any members of Governing Body if it has been approved, not only

by a majority of the Board as a whole, but also by a majority of the three external members: (b) that in determining any question relating to the remuneration of
its members, the Governing Body cannot approve any arrangements which would conFer on any of its members a greater benefit than that recommended in

relation to those members by the Salaries Board.

Composition of the Salaries Board is set out on pages 2 and 3 of the Report of Governing Body.

Trustees employed by the House fall into the following categories:

Official Students

Fixed Term Students

Ordinary Students

Research Students
Canon Professors

There are also five trustees, the Dean, the Sub Dean, the Treasurer, the Steward and the Development Director who are employed full time on management

and/or fundraising.

Some trustees are eligible for college housing schemes. ?2 trustees live in houses owned by the House. Orhers may be eligible for a housing allowance which is

disclosed within the salary figures below. 9 trustees live in houses owned joindy with the House under the Shared Equity House Purchase Scheme, in which case

the housing allowance is reduced accordingly. No such property was purchased in the year and no such property was sold in the year.

Some trustees receive further allowances For additional work carried out as part time college officers, e.g. Senior and Junior Censors, Librarian, Tutor for

Admissions, Tutor For Graduates and Development Advisor. These amounts are included within the remuneration figures below.

Remuneration paid to trustees

Range

Number of
Trustees/Fellows

20IS-I9

Gross remuneration, taxable

benefits and pension

contributions
Number of

Trustees/Fellows

2o?7-?.8

Gross remuneration, taxable

benefits and pension

contnbunons

f?-f4 999
fS,ooo-j9,999
j?o,ooo-f t4 999
j?S,ooo-j?9 999
f2o,ooo-f 24 999
f25, ooo-j29 999
j3o,ooo-f34 999
f35,ooo-j39 999
f40,000-j44 999
f45, ooo-f49 999
j55,000-j59 999
j6o,ooo-f 64,999
j65,ooo-f 69,999
f7o,ooo-f 74 999
j75,ooo-f79 999
f90,0oo-j94 999
j?oo,ooo-f?o4, 999
f?o5,000-j?09,999
f??o,ooo-f?I4 999
fuS, ooo-j??9 999
Total

Io

7,683

?5,825

38 309
?26,340
I09,?08

79,o66
267,o?2

37?,o66
?24,390
46,?58

?76,?98

64,529

26S,?83

70?77
r50, ?68

?04,234

2?4475
?I?,695
II5,I

2,459,788

Io

6o

2,?S8

I4,809

5?,S30

?05&932

I30,902

Io7,663

294,I00
37o,682

49,922,

?74 527

?26,476
404 309

74,025

94 004
206,46I
2I5,632

2,423,462

Io trustees are not employees of the House and do not receive remuneration.

Some trustees, together with other senior employees, are eligible for private health insurance as part of their package of remuneration.

All trustees may eat at common table, as can all other employees who are entitled to meals while working.
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xx TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Other transactions with trustees

No trustee claimed expenses for any work perFormed in discharge of duties as a trustee.

See also note go Related Party Transactions.

Key management remuneration

The total remuneration paid to key management (Group and The House) was FI9tk (zot8; 5~69k).

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the House, directly or

indirectly. The key management is considered to be delivered by the Dean, Senior Censor, Junior Censor, Treasurer, Steward and Headmaster.

PENSION SCHEMES

The House participates in five principal pension schemes on behalF oF its staff- Universities Superannuation Scheme ("the USS"), the University of Oxford StaFF

Pension Scheme ("the OSPS"), the Church of England Funded Pension Scheme ("the CEFPS"), the Teachers' Pension Scheme ("the TPS") and The Pensions

Trust ("the TPT"). USS and OSPS schemes are contributory mixed benefit schemes (i.e. they provide benefits on a defined benefit basis - based on length oF

service and pensionable salary and on a defined contribution basis —based on contributions into the scheme). CEFPS, the TPS and the TPT are all contributory

defined benefit schemes. The assets of USS, OSPS, CEFPS and TPT are each held in separate trustee-administered funds.

Each scheme is a multi-employer scheme and the House is unable to identil'y its share of the underlying assets and liabilities relating to defined benefits of each

scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. Therefore, in accordance wirh the accounting standard FRS tow paragraph z8.rr, the House accounts For the schemes

as if they were defined contribution schemes. As a result, the amount charged to the Statement of Financial Activities represents the contributions payable to the

schemes in respect of the accounting period. In the event of a withdrawal of any of the participating employers in USS, the amount of any pension funding

shortfall (which cannot be otherwise recovered) in respect of that employer will be spread across the remaining participating employers and reflected in rhe next

actuarial valuation of the scheme.

However, in OSPS the amount of any pension funding shortfall in respect of any withdrawing participating employer will be charged to that employer.

USS and OSPS have put in place agreements for additional contributions to Fund rheir past service deficits. In accordance with the provisions of FRS ron, the

House has recognised a liability for the future contributions that it estimates will be payable as a result of these deficit funding agreements.

The House has made available a National Emplo)uncut Savings Trust for non-employees who are eligible under automatic enrolment regulations to pension

benefits.
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23 PENSION SCHEMES CO~D
Schemes accounted for under FRS Ioz paragraph z8.n as defined contribution schemes

Actuarial valuations

Qualified actuaries periodically value the USS and OSPS schemes using the 'projected unit method', embracing a market value approach. The resulting levels of

contribution take account of actuarial surpluses or deficits in each scheme. The financial assumptions were derived From market conditions prevailing at the

valuation date. The resuhs of the latest actuarial valuations and the assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results of the latest valuations and

the determination of the contribution levels for the two schemes are shown in the Following table:

Date of valuation:

Date valuation results published:

Value oF liabilities:

Value of assets:

Funding surplus / (deficit):

Principal assumptions:
~ Investment return

~ Rate of interest (periods up to retirement)

~ Rate of interest (periods up after retirement)

~ Rate of increase in salaries

~ Rate of increase in pensions

Mortality assumptions:
~ Assumed life expectancy at age 65 (males)

~ Assumed life expectancy at age 65 (females)

Funding Ratios:
~ Technical provisions basis

~ Statutory Pension Protection Fund basis

~ 'Buy-out' basis

~ Estimated FRS ioz Total Funding level

Notes

a Scb

USS

31/03/17

28/OI/19

567.5bn

E6o.obn

(F7.5bn)

CPI —0.53% to

CPI —t.3z%pa

CPI + z%pa
CPI pa

24. 5 yrs

z6.o yrs

89%

48%

OSPS
3I/03/I6

28/04/I7

F66rm

55zgm

(EI33m)

'Gilts' + I..z%pa
'Gilts' + I.z%pa

RPI + i%pa
Ave RPI/CPI pa

22.4 yis

24.7 yrs

S0%

67%

8z%

Recommended employer's contribution rate

(as % of pensionable salaries):

e &:f I8% increasing

to 24.2% by
01/04/20

z3%
decreasing to

I9% from

OI/08/20I7

Effective date of next valuation: 3I/03/I8 3I/03/I9

a. USS' actuarial valuation as at 3I March zoi7 takes into account the revised benefit structure efFective I April zor6 agreed both by the Joint Negotiating

Committee and rhe Trustee in July zor5 following the Employers' consultation which concluded in June zor5. Key changes agreed include: for Final Salary section

members, the benefits buih up to 3I March zor6 were calculated as at that date using pensionable salary and pensionable service immediately prior to that date and

going Forwards will be revalued in line with increases in official pensions (currently CPI); all members accrue a pension of t/75th and a cash lump sum of 3/75ths of

salary each year of service in respect of salary up to a salary threshold, initially F55,ooo p.a. , with the threshold applying From I October zoi6; member

contributions were 8% oF salary but will increase in stages from I April zoi9 to a level of ti.7% from I April zozo; a defined contribution benefit For salary above

the salary threshold at the total level of zo% of salary in excess of the salary threshold. Further details about the benefits may be reviewed on USS' website,

www. uss. co.uk. For the period up to I April zot6 the employer deficit contribution was 0.7% p.a. of salaries based on the assumptions made. After allowing For

those changes, the actuary established an employer contribution rate of I8% pa of salaries for the period from I April zor6 to 3I March 20I9, I9.5% from I April to

3o September 20I9, 22.5% from I October zoi9 to 3t March zozo and a long-term rate of 24.2%. On the assumptions made and with the salary threshold and

defined conuibution section implemented this gives rise to deficit contributions of at least 5% p.a. of salaries from I. April zozo. At 3I March zoi9 USS reported

that the estimated funding deficit was F5.7bn (92% funded).

b. OSPS' actuarial valuation as at 3I March zor6 identified a required long-term employer contribution rate of I7.3% of total pensionable salaries, with a funding

deficit of FI33 m. The valuation resuhs reflect a number oF changes to benefits that were agreed following an Employers' consultation in early zor7, including From

I April zor7 a change in indexation based on the average of RPI and CPI, from I October zot7 a defined contribution section for new entrants and from I April

zoIS breaking the final salary link For certain members and increased employee contributions. The actuary has certified that the recovery plan should eliminate the

deficit by 3o June zoz7. The next triennial valuation is due with an efFective date of 3I March 20I9.

c. USS' actuary has assumed that the investment return is CPI —o43% in year I, decreasing linearly to CPI —I.3z% over Io years, CPI + 2.56% from year n

reducing linearly to CPI + I.7% by year zr, remaining at CPI + I.7%.

d, USS' actuary has assumed that general pay growth will be CPI +z% in year I, CPI + 2,% in year 2 and thereafter. It is assumed that CPI is based on the RPI

assumption (market derived price inflation of 3.6% p.a. less an inflation risk premium) less RPI/CPI gap of I.o% p.a.
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PENSION SCHEMES CONTIMXD

e. As noted above (note a) the total USS employer contributions of i8% of salaries include provisions for the cost of future accrual of defined benefits (DB) (net

of member contributions to the DB section), deficit contributions, administrative expenses of o.4% of salaries and from the implementation of the salary

threshold the employer contribution towards defined contribution benefits including employer matching contributions and certain investment management costs

relating to the DC section. The zoty actuarial valuation was the fourth valuation for the scheme under the scheme-specific Funding regime introduced by. the

Pensions Act zoo4, which requires schemes to adopt a statutory funding objective, which is to have sufficient and appropriate assets to cover their technical

provisions. At the valuation date, the value of the assets of the scheme was f6o.o billion and the value of the scheme's technical provisions was f67.g billion

indicating a shortfall of Xy. y billion and a funding ratio of 89%.

f. As noted above (note b), the OSPS employer contribution rate required For Future service benefits in the defined benefit section alone is iy.3% of total

pensionable salaries From t April zoi8. The employer contribution rate was z3% from i August zot6 to 3i July zoiy. It was agreed that employer contribution rate

would be i9% for both defined benefits members and defined contributions members who join on or after i October zoiy. Part of contribution for defined

contribution members would be paid to the defined benefit section to cover the deficit recovery plan, the provision of ill-health and death-in service benefits and

the expenses oF administering the defined contribution section.

Sensitivity of actuarial valuation assumptions

Surpluses or deficits which arise at future valuations may impact on the House's Future contribution commitment. The sensitivities regarding the principal

assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:

USS Assumptions:

Initial discount rate

set values

RPI inflation

Rate of mortality

USS Change in Assumptions

increase / reduce b o.z3%
reduce b io%

increase / reduce b o.z3%

more prudent assumption (mortality used at last

valuation, rated down b a Furrher ear

Impact on USS liabilities

decrease / increase b f3.3bn

increase b f6.obn

increase / decrease b F3.3bn

increase by Xr.6bn

OSPS Assumptions:

aluation rate of interest

Rare of ension increases

Life expectancy

OSPS Change in Assumptions

decrease b i.o%
increase b i.o%

more prudent assumption

(life ex ectan increases b 3 ears)

Impact on OSPS technical provisions (from 8o%
funded at 3i/o3/zoi6)

68%

69%

Deficit Recovery Plans

In line vrith FRS ioz paragraph zg. iiA, the House has recognised a liability for the contributions payable for the agreed deficit funding plan. The principle

assumptions used in these calculations are tabled below.

Finish Date For Deficit Recovery Plan

verage staff number increase

verage staff salary increase

verage discount rate over period

EFFect of o.3% change in discount rate

Effect of r% chan e in staff owth

USS

31/06/34

1.00%
z.oo%
r.38%
f99k
Xzr4k

OSPS
3o/o6/zy

i.oo%
z.oo%
t.z3%

543k
fr4yk

A copy of the full actuarial valuation reports and other further details on the USS and OSPS schemes are available on the USS website www. uss. co.uk and on the

University of Oxford website http: //www. admin. ox.ac.uk/finance/pensions/osps/.

Church of England Funded Pension Scheme

The pension charge for the year includes 538k (zor8 - fz9k) in relation to the CEFPS.

The latest estimate of funding position of the CEFPS, carried out at 3i December zoi6, identified a Funding deficit of &34rm (83% funded) compared to Fz36m

(y3% Funded) in the actuarial valuation as at 3i December zor3. The employer contribution rate will continue at 39.9% of the previous year's National Minimum

Stipend, of which z8% is required for future service benefits and ri.9% For past service liabilities. The deficit recovery period remains unchanged and is scheduled

to end on 3r December zoz5. A valuation at 3i December zot8 is currently under way, but the results of this are yet to be determined.
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PENSION SCHEMES CONTINUED

The Pensions Trust

The pension charge For the year includes 527k (zoi8 - f3zk) in relation to The Pensions Trust.

The latest actuarial valuation of The Pensions Trust was carried out on 3o September zoi4, identifying a funding deficit of f37.4m, with assets of fno, om and a

funding target oFFI474m, a funding level of 75%. The employer contribution rates have been set at 232% For the I/6oth scheme and 96% for the I/80th scheme.

The next valuation is due as at 3o September zor7.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The pension charge For the year includes 5235k (zor8 —EI3ok) in relation to the Teachers' Pension Scheme.

The TPS is an unFunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go basis' with contribuuons from the member and employer being credited to the

Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Members of the Cathedral School's teaching staff are automatically eligible to join the TPS, which is administered by the Teachers' Pension Agency. The laresr

actuarial valuation of the Scheme by the Government Actuary was carried out as at 3I March zoiz, and was published by the Department For Education on 9 June

zoi4. The value of rhe scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment plus the estimated cost of future benefits) was ft9t. 5 bn. The value of the notional assets

(estimated furure contributions together with the notional investments held ar the valuation date) was &76.6 bn, giving a notional past service deficit of EI4.9 bn.

During the year the employer contribution rate was I6.48%. The TPS valuation for zoiz determined an employer rate of I6.4% From September zoi5. The next

valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on April zoi6 data, whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable

from i September zor9. The TPS is subject to a valuation by the actuary every four years.

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers' Pensions website at http: //www. teacherspensions. co.uk.

Pension charge for the year

The pension charge recorded by the House during the accounting period was equal to the contributions payable after allowance for the deficit recovery plan as

follows:

cheme

20I9
Movement in

Contributions Total

z,or8
Movement in

Contributions Total

E'ooo f'000 F, ooo f, 'ooo I'000 E'ooo

Universities Superannuation Scheme 593 2546 2&I39 553 -I4 539

University of Oxford Staff Pension Scheme

Church of England Funded Pension Scheme

e Teachers' Pension Scheme

e Pensions Trust

NEST

748
38

I35

27

*&542

363

I& 09

38

I35

27

50

684

29

I30

32

I&429

-II9

-I33

565

29

i30

i,296

Summary of defined benefit pension scheme liability

Provision b/fwd

ctuarial movement in year

Provision c/fwd

USS
E'ooo

85z

I,568

2,420

OSPS

f,'000

39i
1,839

Total

f ooo

2,300

I 959

4 259

24 TAXATION

The House is able to take advantage of the tax exemptions available to charities from taxation in respect of income and capital gains received to the extent that

such income and gains are applied to exclusively charitable purposes. No liability to corporation tax arises in the House's subsidiary companies because the

directors of these companies have indicated that they intend to make donations each year to the House equal to the taxable profits of the company under the Gift

Aid scheme. Accordingly no provision For taxation has been included in the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The House has certain financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial instruments. Basic financial insuuments are initially

recognised at transaction value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Certain other financial instruments are held at fair value, with gains and losses being

recognised within income and expenditure.

The House has the following financial instruments:

Financial assets measured at fair value through statement of financial activities:

Investments

2,0I9
Group
f, '000

4o5, 6z3

zoi8

Group
I'000

433 573

?.QI9

The House

F,'000

430 434

20I8

The House

f.'0OO

438 493

405)62,3 433 573 430)434 438,493

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by House members

Amounts owed by Group undertakings

Accrued income

Other debtors

15,300
I,635

4rs
0

I,30I

I5

IS,z6S

I 905

373
0

2 799
0

I4,zSo

I,46I

4is
790

I,30I

Is

I7,43S

i 759

373

85o

2 799
0

I8,666 23 345 I8 262 2.3,2I9

Financial liabilities that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost:

Notes payable

Bank loans —including more than I year

Trade creditors

Amounts owed to House Members

College contribution

Accruals and deferred income

40,000
IO, OOO

2 993
234

374
z, 9z6

40,000
IO, OOO

3,I76
I46

0

»599

40,000
IO, OOO

2 597

234

374
2,704

40,000
IO, OOO

2,845

I47
0

2,592

56,52,7 55 9» 5$)909 ss s84

Financial liabilities that are measured at fair value:

Fair value cost of loan swap 5,4I8 6,66z 5,4I8

6,662 5,4I8 6,662 5,4IS

Gains and losses on the loan swap in the year are disclosed on the face of rhe SOFA.

26 RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOMING RESOURCES TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS
20I9

Group
I,'000

zoi8

Group

f.'ooo

Net income 23,I60 5I 307

Elimination of non-operating cash flows:

Investment income

(Gains)/losses in investments

Endowment donations

Interest payable on notes

Investment management costs

Depreciation

(Increase)/Decrease in stock

Decrease in debtors

Increase in creditors

Decrease in provisions

Increase/(Decrease) in pension scheme liability

Increase/(Decrease) in loan swap reserve

(I6,987)
(?.8,095)

(z 453)

I,027

4 393

(97)
I,727

643

(6)

»959

(I7,642)

(47,6o7)

(I 75I)
I,027

3,6ts

524

5I

2,704
527

(97)
(88)

(SIS)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (I3)OIS) (7 955)
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z7 ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2,0I9

f'000
Group

2018

F.'000

Group

Cash at bank and in hand

Notice deposits (less than 3 months)

Bank overdrafts

I5~300 IS,z68

Total cash and cash equivalents I5,300 I8,z68

z8 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

At 3I July the House has total commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as Follows:

Land and buildings

payable within one year

payable between two and five years

payable in over five years

20I9
f'000

88I

3)525

z9,o8o

zoIS

F.'ooo

85z

3 407
z8,959

Total expenditure in the year on land and building operating leases was 5793k (zoi7-IS: f74zk).
33,486 33,2IS

Other

payable wirhin one year

payable between two and five years

payable in over five years

I3 I7

35

0

Total expenditure in the year on other operating leases was fiik (zoi7-I8: Xizk).

35 52

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There are no capital commiuments that require disclosure.

3o RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The House is part of the collegiate University of OxFord. Materiai interdependencies between rhe University and of the College arise as a consequence oF this

relationship. For reporting purposes, the University and the orher Colleges are not treated as related parties as defined in FRS Ioz.

Members oF the Governing Body, who are the trustees of the House and related parties as defined by FRS Ioz, receive remuneration and facilities as employees of

the House. Details of these payments and reimbursed expenses as trustees are disclosed separately in these financial statements.

The House may enter into equity sharing arrangements with an OfFicial Student, Officers oF the House or other persons employed by the House under Sratute

XXVII(5). The House has properties with the following net book values owned jointly with trustees under joint equity ownership agreements between the trustee

and the House.

2,0I9
f, '000

zoIS

f.'ooo

Dr A Kuhn

Dr B Young

Dr D Aarts

Dr B Parkinson

Dr E Keene

Dr S Dadson

Dr J Yee

Dr S Newstead

Dr D Obbink

2,74
I90
233

3IO

3I2
300
I9I
434

274

I90
2-33

3IO

3II
3I2

300

I9I
434

All joint equity properties are subject to sale on the departure of the trustee from the House. The trustees pay an occupation fee of F5oo pa to the House on the

House's owned share of the properties.
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)r CONTINGENT LIAB~
There are no obligations arising from events occurring before the date of the balance sheet whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of events not

wholly with the House's control.

gz FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

r. As set out in Note zg in respect of the USS pension scheme, a new Schedule of Contributions based on the zot8 actuarial valuation has been agreed. This results

in a yt% decrease off997k in the provision For the obligation to Fund the deficit on the USS pension which would instead be ft,yzgk. This adjustment will be

reflected in the House's Financial Statements for the year ended gr July zozo.

2. On 8 November zot9 the House entered into an agreement with Aviva Life gc Pensions UK Ltd for the issue of fromm z.or% Senior Notes repayable on i

November zo69. The notes were drawn down on tz November zoro, the proceeds of which will be invested in commercial endowment property.

Page &z


